
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 

IRISH BEACH WATER DISTRICT MEETING PACKET 
March 11, 2023 

 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

  

                                                         1



 
 
 
 
 
 

PLE
will
dire
Pac
 
Joi
 

 

 

 
Ag
 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

R

 
EASE NOTE:
 be held via Z
ectors/employ
cket can be a

in Zoom Me

https://u

Meeting 
Passcod

Dial by y

enda 

CALL TO O
 

PUBLIC INP
MAXIMUM O
 

OLD BUSIN
A. DISCUS
B. DISCUS

OVERS
C. DISCUS

MURRA
D. DISCUS

CONSID
E. DISCUS

ENDING
 

NEW BUSIN
A. DISCUS

(ISRAEL
B. DISCUS
 POLICY
C.  DISCUSS
 FOR EF

TH
REX DUNNING

 The March 1
ZOOM telecon
yees will be em
ccessed at ww

eeting 

s02web.zoom

 ID: 830 5902
de: 008911 

your location 
+1 669 900 9
+1 253 215 8
Find your loc

RDER AND R

PUT:  OPENIN
OF FIVE (5) M

NESS:  
SSION AND O
SSION AND O
IGHT. (ACKE

SSION AND O
AY)  
SSION AND O
DERATION O
SSION AND/O
G 9/30/21; 9/3

NESS:  
SSION AND O
L, HACKETT)
SSION AND/O
Y REGARDING
SION AND/O

FFICIENCY AN

NOT
HE IRISH BEA
G FIREHOUS

Sat

1, 2023, regu
nferencing an
mailed an inv
ww.IBWD.org

m.us/j/830590

2 5448 

9128 US (San
8782 US (Taco
al number: ht

ROLL CALL O

NG OF THE M
MINUTES ALL

OR ACTION:  
OR ACTION:  
ER, HACKETT
OR ACTION:  

OR ACTION:  
F THE FINAL

OR ACTION:  
30/20. (MURR

OR ACTION:  
. 

OR ACTION: C
G SEPTIC TA

OR ACTION:  
ND IN ACCO

TICE OF THE
ACH WATER

SE, 15401 FO
turday, Marc

ular bi-monthly
d in person m
itation to the m

g.  

25448?pwd=b

 Jose) 
oma) 
ttps://us02web

OF BOARD M

MEETING TO
LOWED FOR

 REPORT FR
 SMALL COM

T, MURRAY)  
 TECHNOLOG

 REPORT FR
L FISCAL YEA
 ACCEPT AN

RAY). 

 SELECTION

CONSIDER R
ANK INSPECT
PROPOSED 
RDANCE WIT

 REGULAR M
R DISTRICTB
REST VIEW 

ch 11, 2023, 1

y meeting of t
meeting at Fire
meeting with a

bzkvWG1sbU

b.zoom.us/u/k

MEMBERS.  (

O PUBLIC COM
 EACH PRES

ROM THE PRO
MMUNITY DR
 
GY GRANT IM

ROM THE BUD
AR 2022-23 B

ND FILE DIST

 OF NEW ME

RESOLUTION
TION AND PU
 REVISION T
TH ROBERT’

MEETING OF
OARD OF DI
ROAD, MANC

10:00 A.M. 

the Irish Beac
ehouse.  Irish 
a link to log-in

U82N2x6UEp2

kdOOXdtPoz 

(ISRAEL). 

MMENTS FO
SENTATION. 

OP 218 COM
OUGHT REL

MPLEMENTA

DGET COMM
BUDGET. (DY
RICT FINANC

EMBERS OF 

N 2023-__ - IR
UMPING. (ISR
O AGENDA F
S RULE OF O

F  
IRECTORS 
CHESTER, C

ch Water Distr
 Beach Water
n to the meeti

2allhS3VXZz0

OR TOPICS N
(ISRAEL). 

MMITTEE.(DYS
IEF GRANT A

ATION UPDAT

MITTEE – BOA
YSON, MURR
CIAL AUDIT F

THE BOARD 

RISH BEACH 
RAEL). 
FORMAT AND
ORDER. (ISR

CA 95459 

rict Board of D
r District 
ng. The Meet

09 

OT ON AGEN

SON, HACKE
ADMINISTRA

TE. (ACKER,

ARD 
RAY, TERRY)
FOR FISCAL 

 OF DIRECTO

 WATER DIST

D ACTION PR
RAEL). 

Directors 

ting 

NDA.  A 

ETT).  
ATION & 

 

. 
YEARS 

ORS. 

TRICT 

ROCESS 

                                                         2



D. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION:  APPOINT MEMBERS TO BUDGET/FINANCE COMMITTEE AND REVIEW 
PROCEDURES FOR STANDING COMMITTEES. (ISRAEL). 

 

5. COMMUNICATIONS AND CORRESPONDENCE.  
 

6. REPORTS:  
A. TREASURER:  Treasurer’s Report, Checks Issued: (MURRAY) 
B. WATER STORAGE FACILITIES/CONVEYANCE LOSS:  (ACKER)  
C. SAFETY COMMITTEE:  (ACKER) 
D. LEGAL COUNSEL:  (EMRICK)  
E. DIRECTORS:  
 

7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  FEBRUARY 11, 2023 REGULAR MEETING. 
 

8. EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION.  
A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION: SUBDIVISION (A) OF CALIFORNIA 

GOVERNMENT CODE §54956.9:  WILLIAM H. MOORES ET AL. V. IRISH BEACH WATER DISTRICT, 
MENDOCINO SUPERIOR COURT NO. SC-UK-CV-G-09-0054665-000; First District Court of Appeal No. 
A151867.  

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED/ POTENTIAL LITIGATION:  SIGNIFICANT 
EXPOSURE TO LITIGATION PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPHS (2) OR (3) OF SUBDIVISION (D) OF SECTION 
54956.9: (1 POTENTIAL CASE).  

 

9. ADJOURNMENT.  (ISRAEL) 
 
ASSISTANCE WILL BE PROVIDED TO HANDICAPPED PERSONS WHO REQUIRE IT TO PARTICIPATE IN THE 
MEETING.  PER GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS §54950-54963. 
 
PUBLIC RECORDS ARE AVAILABLE PER CALIFORNIA PUBLIC RECORDS ACT GOVERNMENT CODE §6250-
6276.48, UNLESS THEY ARE EXEMPT UNDER PUBLIC RECORDS ACT §54957.5. 

                                                         3



 

 

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~  

PUBLIC INPUT: LIMITED TO 5 MINUTES PER PERSON          

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~  

 

 

 

                                                         4



 
SC
 

 
 

OLD BUSIN

I’s Proposed 

NESS:  A. DIS

Project Timel

~~~~~~~

SCUSSION AN

~~~~~~~

ine: 

 

~~~~~~~~~~

ND OR ACTIO

~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~
 

ON: REPORT
 

~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~

T FROM THE 

~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~ 

 PROP 218 C

~~~~~ 

COMMITTEE.  

                                                         5



 

 

 

    

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

OLD BUSINESS 3 B 

DISCUSSION AND OR ACTION:  SMALL COMMUNITY DROUGHT RELIEF 
GRANT ADMINISTRATION & OVERSIGHT. 

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

                                                         6



 

 

 

    

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

OLD BUSINESS 3 C 

DISCUSSION AND OR ACTION:  TECHNOLOGY GRANT IMPLEMENTATION            
UPDATE 

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

                                                         7



 

 

 

    

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

OLD BUSINESS 3 D 

DISCUSSION AND OR ACTION:  REPORT FROM BUDGET COMMITTEE: 
BOARD CONSIDERATION OF THE FINAL FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

                                                         8



FINAL BUDGET NARRATIVE FOR OLD BUSINESS 3 D.  

FINAL FISCAL YEAR 2022‐2023 BUDGET 

This Final Budget appropriates: 

 $58,235 for operations from water charges with rate of 83 cents per 100 gallons based on 

estimate of 71,288 hundreds of gallons or 7,128800 gallons water used in previous year.  Water 

usage is down. 

$251,923 for operations from availability charges that remain the same from last fiscal year, 

$108.56 per month. 

$17,730 for reserves. 

$104,248 in salaries which includes 7.5% cost of living adjustment. 

Services and supplies includes a 3% cost of living adjustment. 

This budget provides for normal operations plus funds to cover unanticipated events.  Even in 

normal operations it is hard to predict for a district such as ours how much will be needed for 

day to day operations; and, of course impossible to predict unexpected repairs.   

I have attached a resolution prepared for the adoption of this final budget.  If this final budget is 

not approved then the second resolution will need to be adopted that provides for the last 

fiscal year budget for 2021‐22 be repeated and the rates set for this year at $108.56 availability 

charge which is no change and 68 cents per 100 gallons of water used.  This action is based on a 

motion made at the September 2022 meeting. 

 

 

 

 

                                                         9



Resolution # 2023-_____ 
 

Resolution of the Board of the Irish Beach Water District Documenting 
The Approval of the District’s FY2022-2023 Operating Budgets for Water  

 
WHERAS, the Irish Beach Water District income requirements are stated in the annual budget 

and income is derived by water rates and the District-Wide Capital Improvement Assessment.  Since the 
budget varies each year depending on anticipated expenses, capital projects, and reserve goals, the water 
rates must be adjusted to meet the needs of the budget. 

 
1. NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Irish Beach Water 

District approves the FY 2022-2023 Water District Budget as attachments to this resolution titled “Cash 
Flow Water Budget for the Irish Beach Water District – “October 1, 2022 through September 30, 2023”. 

 
2. NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Irish Beach Water 

District has determined that the water rates, as stated below and on the attached “Cash Flow Water 
Budget For the Irish Beach Water District – October 1, 2022 through September 30, 2023 are responsive 
to and in support of the needs of the Water District and are approved for the FY 2022-2023. These rates 
will be effective beginning   __January 1___, 2023 

    
Water Rate Calculation 

Basis 
  Total Number of Connected Users as of 9/30/2022         207 
  100s of Gallons used in District per year (most recent year to date 7/31/22)      71,288 
    Total Budget Expenses Chargeable to Usage               $   58,235 

Total Budget Expenses & Reserve Funding Chargeable to Availability $ 270,253 
Total Billing Periods in Year             6 

Rate Calculation 
  Usage Rate/100 Gallons                         $0.83 
  Availability Charge/ 1 month       $108.56 
  Availability Charge/ 2 months       $217.13 
 

3. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Irish Beach Water District 
will review water rates annually in conjunction with the annual budget and make adjustments to water rates 
as required to assure that water rates accurately reflect the needs of the approved budget including an 
annual inflationary adjustment tied to the Consumer Price Index as of January of each succeeding year, 
with the maximum annual adjustment not to exceed 3%.  COLA for salaries:  7.5%  COLA for operations 3%. 
 
The foregoing Resolution No. 2023- ___ was considered and adopted by the Directors of the Irish Beach 
Water District at their Regular meeting held ______________ by the following vote: 
 Ayes:    
 
 Noes: 
 
 Abstain: 
 
 Absent: 
 
Dated ____________________     ______________________ 
         President 
Attest:  ___________________________   Susan Israel 
 Secretary of the Board 
             Heather Hackett 

                                                         10



Resolution # 2023-_____ 
 

Resolution of the Board of the Irish Beach Water District Documenting 
The Approval of the District’s FY2022-2023 Operating Budgets for Water  

NO CHANGE FROM 21-22 – ADOPTED 3/11/23 FROM MOTION 9/17/22 
WHERAS, the Irish Beach Water District income requirements are stated in the annual budget 

and income is derived by water rates and the District-Wide Capital Improvement Assessment.  Since the 
budget varies each year depending on anticipated expenses, capital projects, and reserve goals, the water 
rates must be adjusted to meet the needs of the budget. 

 
1. NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Irish Beach Water 

District approves the FY 2022-2023 Water District Budget as attachments to this resolution titled “Cash 
Flow Water Budget for the Irish Beach Water District – “October 1, 2022 through September 30, 2023”. 

 
2. NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Irish Beach Water 

District has determined that the water rates, as stated below and on the attached “Cash Flow Water 
Budget For the Irish Beach Water District – October 1, 2022 through September 30, 2023 are responsive 
to and in support of the needs of the Water District and are approved for the FY 1922-2023. These rates 
will be effective beginning   __October 1___, 2022 

    
Water Rate Calculation 

Basis 
  Total Number of Connected Users as of 9/30/2021         207 
  100s of Gallons used in District per year (most recent year to date 7/31/21)      82,160 
    Total Budget Expenses Chargeable to Usage               $   54,808 

Total Budget Expenses & Reserve Funding Chargeable to Availability $ 217,446 
Total Billing Periods in Year             6 

Rate Calculation 
  Usage Rate/100 Gallons                         $0.67 
  Availability Charge/ 1 month       $108.56 
  Availability Charge/ 2 months       $217.13 
 

3. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Irish Beach Water District 
will review water rates annually in conjunction with the annual budget and make adjustments to water rates 
as required to assure that water rates accurately reflect the needs of the approved budget.   

4.  
The foregoing Resolution No. 2023- ___ was considered and adopted by the Directors of the Irish Beach 
Water District at their Regular meeting held __MARCH 11, 2023__ by the following vote: 
 Ayes:    
 
 Noes: 
 
 Abstain: 
 
 Absent: 
 
Dated ____________________     ______________________ 
         President 
Attest:  ___________________________   SUSAN ISRAEL 
 Secretary of the Board 
             Heather Hackett 

                                                         11



CASH FLOW  

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1011

12

13

14

1516

17

1819

20

21

22

2324

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42

43

44

45

46

47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58

59

60

61

62

A B C D E G H I J K L M N O

Item Sub-Total Total

Income
Operating Income (See Row 303 for explanation of composition of income) $328,488
Non-Operating Income

Total Income $328,488

Expenses
Operating Expenses $250,558
Non- Operating Expenses $25,200

Total Expenses $275,758

Capital Projects and Equipment Purchases
Capital Improvement Projects Covered by Assessment.  

Assessment and Operating Reserve Changes
Assessment Reserves Account Deposits and Withdrawls (Not Including Interest)

Deposits in Assessment Reserves
Draws From Assessment Reserves (Loan Repayment & Projects)

Operating Reserves Account Deposits and Withdrawls (Not Including Interest)
Deposits in Operating Reserves / Capital Projects $17,730

Expense Reconciliation
Expenses Funded by Water Charges

Expenses Funded from Usage Charges $58,235
Expenses Funded from Availability Charges $251,923

Expenses Charged Directly to Customers (Meter Connections) $600
Expenses Funded by Income (Subtotal) $310,758

Expenses Funded by Assessment
Total Funded Expenses $310,758

Income Reconciliation
Income Designated for Expenses $310,758
Income Designated for Reserves (Funded by Availbility Charges) $17,730 $328,488
Interest Income Allowed to Accumilate in Accounts
Reimbusements, Late Fees, & Penalties Not Budgeted for Expenses (Unacceptable High Uncertainty)

Restricted Assessment Income 
Total Income $328,488    

 

Total Number of Users as of 9/30/22 207 2015 71,798 HUNDREDS GALS
100s of Gallons used in District per year (Fiscal year) 71,288 Elect.MeterRead 2016-58,547 Hundreds of gallons
Total Expenses Chargeable to Usage $58,235 2017 - 60,975 Hundreds Gallons
     Expenses Chargeable to Availability $251,923 2018 - 60,404 Hundreds of Gallons
     Reserves Chargeable to Availability $17,730 $327,888 2019 - 63,243 Hundreds of Gallons
Total Expenses Chargeable to Availability $269,653 7/20-21 - 82,160 Hundreds of Gallons

Usage Charge $0.15 increase $0.82 Per 100 Gallons 0.67 21/22 
Availability Charge no change $108.56 Per Month 108.56 21/22

$217.11 Per Billing 217.13 21/22
Note:

Treasurer Operating loan payments scheduled for 5 years.
Presented for approval to IBWD Board of Directors (    ) This is fourth year 22-23 fifth 23-24

45800 25200 7300
     

 

Budget Balance Reconciliation

Water Rates Based on Funding Requirements of this Budget

  WATER BUDGET FOR THE IRISH BEACH WATER DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023
To be approved March 11, 2023 PROPOSED  BUDGET - 7.5% cola

 3/6/2023 8:15 PM Proposed_Budget 2022_2023.xlsx Page 1 of 28                                                          12



CASH FLOW  

2

3

4

A B C D E G H I J K L M N O

  WATER BUDGET FOR THE IRISH BEACH WATER DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023
To be approved March 11, 2023 PROPOSED  BUDGET - 7.5% cola

63
64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79
80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

Package Contents
Page 1 Summary, Budget Balance Reconciliation & Water Rate Calculation
Page 2 Income
Page 2-3 Expenses
Page 4 Capital Projects
Page 4 Asset Transfers
Page 5 Budget Notes

Income  (1)
410.000 Operating Revenues Item Sub-Total Total

411.100 Water Sales Residential-Water Usage $58,235
421.300 Availability Charges $269,653
421.510 Meter Connections $600

Total 410.000 Operating Revenues $328,488
490.000 Non-Operating Revenues

491.000 Leases (2)
492.000 Interest

492.100 Interest - Checking/Operations Cash Account
492.200 Interest - Operating Reserves
492.300 Interest - <40yr Assets Capital Replacement Reserve
492.400 Interest - 40yr Assets Capital Replacement Reserve
492.500 Interest - System Wide Capital Improvements Account
492.600 Interest - (AWDF)  Account

493.350 Property Assessment-Current   END OF 15 YEARS OF RESTRICTED ASSESSMENT COLLECTIONS
493.351 Assessment-40yr Assets Capital Replacement Reserve
493.352 Assessment-System Wide Capital Improvements
493.353 Assessment-(AWDF)
493.354 Assessment-Loan Repayment - 65% Allocated to Parcels

498.000 Other Non-Operating Revenue
498.110 Copies
498.310 Other Refunds
498.400 Reimbursements From IBVFD

Total Income  $328,488
UC = Usage Charge  AC = Availability Charge

Expenses (1) Item Sub-Total Total
500.000 Operating Expenses

510.000 Source of Supply
511.000 Labor & Materials For Operating Installed Equip. (Supervision & Labor & Expense ) 50% UC & AC $3,869

511.100 Labor for the Operating of Equipment, Maintaining Associated Logs $1,955
and Records, Patrolling Irish Creek, Brush Cutting, etc. 

511.200 Equipment & Supplies for Operation of Equipment $1,914
512.000 Labor & Materials for Maintenance (Maintenance-Structures & Improvements ) AC $2,731
512.100 Labor for Maintenance & Repair of Installed Items $1,052
512.200 Equipment & Supplies for Maintenance & Repair of Installed Items $1,679
513.000 Power Purchased for Source of Supply (Electric) UC $2,787 $2,787

Total 510.000 Source of Supply $9,387

 3/6/2023 8:16 PM Proposed_Budget 2022_2023.xlsx Page 2 of 28                                                          13



CASH FLOW  

2

3

4

A B C D E G H I J K L M N O

  WATER BUDGET FOR THE IRISH BEACH WATER DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023
To be approved March 11, 2023 PROPOSED  BUDGET - 7.5% cola

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128129130

131

132

133

134

135

136

137

138

139

140

141
142

 Item Sub-Total Total
530.000 Water Treatment

531.000 Labor & Materials For Operating Installed Equip. (Supervision & Labor & Expense )
531.100 Labor for Water Treatment Activities, Operating Equipment, 50% UC $26,482  

Maintaining Associated Logs and Records 50% AC

531.200 Equipment & Supplies for Operation of Equipment UC 3188.88 $3,189
531.500 Water Eye / Satellite Paging UC
531.300 Analytical Testing

531.3 Analytical Testing UC $7,641
100% AC

531.400 Chemicals and Filtering  Supplies UC $3,614
532.000 Labor and Materials for Maintenance (Maintenance-Structures & Improvements ) AC $1,692

532.100 Labor for Maintenance & Repair of Installed Items $1,080
532.200 Equipment & Supplies for Maintenance & Repair of Installed Items $612

533.000 Power Purchased for Treatment (Electric) UC $2,657
Total 530.000 Water Treatment $45,275

540.000 Transmission and Distribution
541.000 Labor & Materials For Operating Installed Equip. (Supervision & Labor & Expense ) 50% UC & AC $14,503

541.100 Labor for Transmission Activities, Operating Equipment, Maintaining $10,251
Associated Logs and Records, Patrolling Distribution System, Brush Cutting, etc. 

541.200 Equipment & Supplies for Operation of Installed Items $4,252
542.000 Labor and Materials for Maintenance (Maintenance-Structures & Improvements ) AC $18,444

542.100 Labor for Maintenance & Repair of Installed Items $12,430
542.200 Equipment & Supplies Maintenance & Repair of Installed Items $3,189
542.250 Outside Labor/Equipment $2,825

543.000 Power Purchased for Transmission and Distribution (Electric) UC $4,358
544.000 Telephone for Distribution UC $1,389

Total 540.000 Transmission and Distribution $38,694

 3/6/2023 8:16 PM Proposed_Budget 2022_2023.xlsx Page 3 of 28                                                          14



CASH FLOW  

2

3

4

A B C D E G H I J K L M N O

  WATER BUDGET FOR THE IRISH BEACH WATER DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023
To be approved March 11, 2023 PROPOSED  BUDGET - 7.5% cola

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155

156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

174

175

176

177

178

179

550.000 Customer Accounts  Item Sub-Total Total
551.000 Labor,  Matrerials, and other Expenses for Customer Accounting and Collection

551.100 Labor for Billing 50% UC & AC $11,696
551.200 Labor for Meter Reading UC $9,901
551.300 Meter Intallations
551.310 Labor for meter installations $600
551.320 Meters $21,597

Total 550.000 Customer Accounts $22,197
 

560.000 Administrative & General
561.000 Salaries AC $23,962
562.000 Office Supplies & Other Expenses

562.010 Office Maintenance & Supplies $3,718
562.020 Administrative Services (12)
562.030 Outside copy work
562.040 Postage
562.050 Software $4,321

new:cloud, drop box, QBonline, $3,000
QB Payroll $774
Billing Maintenace $547

562.060 Licenses and Permits $1,307
562.070 Memberships/Dues/Annual Fees $4,566

Calif Rural Water $774
Calif Special Districts $593
State Water Resources Control Board $593
Department of Health Services $1,207  
LAFCO $727
State Bd of Equilization $671

562.080 Training
562.090 Advertising/noticing in paper
562.100 Election
562.110 Port-A-Potty/Garbage $1,594
562.120 Printer and accessories
562.140 Telephone-Administrative
562.160 Internet $1,914

Total 562.000 Office Supplies & Other Expenses AC $17,420

 3/6/2023 8:17 PM Proposed_Budget 2022_2023.xlsx Page 4 of 28                                                          15



CASH FLOW  

2

3

4

A B C D E G H I J K L M N O

  WATER BUDGET FOR THE IRISH BEACH WATER DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023
To be approved March 11, 2023 PROPOSED  BUDGET - 7.5% cola

180

181

182

183

184

185

186

187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198

199

200

201

202

203

204
205

206

207

208

209

210

211

212

213

214

215

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

228

563.000 Contractual Services Item Sub-Total Total
563.100 Legal Attorney $45,557

563-110 Legal - General Counsel $7,972  
563-120 Legal - Lititgation $37,585  

563.200 Auditor Contract $10,000
563.400 Engineering $820

Total 563.000 Contractual Services AC $56,377
564.000 Property Insurance, Injuries and Damages

564.100 Ins.- General/Liability $13,378
564.200 Workman's Comp.
564.210 Workman's Comp Water $3,199
564.220 Workman's Comp Directors $129
564.230 Workman's Comp Admin $310
564.400 Insurance - Bonded $103

Total 564.000 Property Insurance, Injuries and Damages AC $17,119
565.000 Employee Retirement and Benefits AC $5,038

565.2 Vacation & Sick Leave $5,038
565.100 Payroll Taxes AC $10,711

FICA $7,975
Medicare $1,512
Training Tax $35
UI Contributions $1,190

 
569.000 Other Administrative Expenses

Total 560.000 Administrative and General $130,627

570.000 Other Operating Expenses
Depreciation & Amortization (10) QB571 $35,000 booked non cash exp
Taxes AC avail cash will fund reserve

573.000 Other Operating Expenses
573.100 Vehicle Operation for Operations 50% UC & AC $4,128
573.200 Misc Expenses AC $250

Total 570.000 Other Operating Expenses $4,378
Total 500.000 Operating Expenses $250,558 also see line 260 reserves

 
590.000 Non-Operating Expenses Item Sub-Total Total

591.000 Interest, Long Term Debt
591.100 Loan Repayment Funded From Operations (Rate Payers ) UC UC

591.110 Interest
214.100 Principal

591.200 Loan Repayment Funded From Operations (Connected Users-) AC AC $25,200
591.210 Interest
214.200 Principal $25,200

Total 591.000 Interest, Long Term Debt $25,200
594.000 Other Non-Operating Expenses

594.100 Mendocino County Assessment Collection Fee (2%) AC
Total 590.000 Non-Operating Expenses $25,200
Total Expenses $275,758

 3/6/2023 8:17 PM Proposed_Budget 2022_2023.xlsx Page 5 of 28                                                          16



CASH FLOW  

2

3

4

A B C D E G H I J K L M N O

  WATER BUDGET FOR THE IRISH BEACH WATER DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023
To be approved March 11, 2023 PROPOSED  BUDGET - 7.5% cola

229

230

231

232

233

234

235

236

237

238

239

240

241

242

243

244

245

246

247

248
249

250

251

252

253

254

255

256

257

258

259

260

261

262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

270

271

272

273

274

275

276

277

278

 Item Sub-Total Total
Capital Projects & Equipment Purchases

112.000 Projects - Construction in Progress
POSSIBLE PROJECTS FROM CAPITAL REPLACEMENT GREATER THAN 40 YEAR FUND 
REPLACE PIPE ON FOREST VIEW LOOP ESTIMATED COST $250,000  
REPLACE PIPE ON SEA CYPRESS LOOP ESTIMATED COST $125,000

113.000 Projects - Construction in Progress  
              TANK 2 ROOF

Total General System-Wide Improvements

TO DO LIST:  

 

 

  

                         Capital Replacement Reserve AC $17,224  ****bud chge
            These projects to be

           funded by this year's AC

AC

TOTAL FUNDING PROJECTS <40 YEAR ITEMS QB597 $17,224 35000 cash will come from booked depr.
$52,224

123.211 Draws From Operating Reserves
123.210 Operating Reserve

123.212 Funding Operating Reserve Account AC $506 First of Five payments to repay loan from
Total funding for projects and basic operating reserve AC $17,730    restricted asset greater 40

123.213 Interest Earned by Operating Reserve Account
Total Funding for Project <40 Year items

Total 123.210 Operating Reserve $506
Total to collect for 

123.220 < 40 yr Assets Capital Replacement Reserve Account reserves and projects
123.221 Draws From< 40 yr Assets Capital Replacement Reserve Account Projects this year.
123.222 Funding < 40 yr Assets Capital Replacement Reserve Account"subtracted from formula" AC $17,730

Payback draw from <40 Year Asset Replacement Fund AC

123.223 Interest Earned by < 40 yr Assets Capital Replacement Reserve Account
Total 123.220 <40yr Assets Capital Replacement Reserve AC

 3/6/2023 8:18 PM Proposed_Budget 2022_2023.xlsx Page 6 of 28                                                          17



CASH FLOW  

2

3

4

A B C D E G H I J K L M N O

  WATER BUDGET FOR THE IRISH BEACH WATER DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023
To be approved March 11, 2023 PROPOSED  BUDGET - 7.5% cola

279

280

281

282

283

284

285

286

287

288

289

290

291

292

293

294

295

296

297

298

299

300

301

302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310

311

312

313

314

315

316

Total 123.200 Operating Reserves  Item Sub-Total Total
124.200 Restricted Assets

124.100 40 yr Assets Capital Replacement Reserve
124.110 Draws-40 yr Assets Capital Replacement Reserve Account
124.120 Funding 40 yr Assets Capital Replacement Reserve Account  
124.130 Interest - 40 yr Assets Capital Replacement Reserve Account

Total 124.100  40 yr Asset Capital Replacement Reserve
124.200 System Wide Capital Improvements

124.210 Draws from System Wide Capital Improvements Account
124.220 Funding System Wide Capital Improvements Account
124.230 Interest - System Wide Capital Improvements Account

Total 124.200 System Wiade Capital Improvements
124.300 Mallo Pass Account

124.310 Draws from (AWDF) Account
124.320 Funding (AWDF)  Account
124.330 Interest - (AWDF)  Account

Total 124.300 Mallo Pass Account
124.400 Loan Repayment 66%

124.410 Draws from Loan Repayment Account
124.420 Funding Loan Repayment Account

Total 124.400 Loan Repayment 66%
Total 124.200 Restricted Assets  

Operating Income consists of:
     Total operating expenses $250,558
     Plus operating share of loan $25,200
     Plus County collection fee
     Plus amount to basic reserve fund / projects $17,730

Funding Source Key:      Plus amount to <40 year portion of reserve fund
UC Usage Charge $293,488
AC Availability Charge  depreciation expense transferred to reserves $35,000

SAF Service Assessment Funded
ORF Operating Reserve Funded Total ties to line 97 $328,488

ACRF <40yr Asset Capital Reserve Funded
PAF Property Assessment Funded

PARF Property Assessment Reserve Funded

 3/6/2023 8:18 PM Proposed_Budget 2022_2023.xlsx Page 7 of 28                                                          18



Labor Distribution Fiscal Year 2016-2017

FICA Medicare ETT UI
First $7k First $7k

ID
Hours/
mo (1)

Contract 
Minumum(2)

Hourly 
Rate Hours Cost Hours Cost 7.65% 1.45% 0.10% 3.40%

Charlie 55hr 55 hr $56.46 Charlie 660 $37,263 661 $37,302 $2,854 $541 $7 $238
$0 $0 $0 $0

Paul DeVaul 17hr $28.23 Paul 200 $5,647 319 $9,003 $689 $131 $7 $238
Vacant (15 hours week) 52hr $26.88 Vacant 624 $16,770 565 $15,182 $1,161 $220 $7 $238
R J Dial 61hr $28.56 RJ 732 $20,908 648 $18,489 $1,414 $268 $7 $238
Extra Help 18hr $24.19 Extra He 576 $14,900 950 $24,271 $1,857 $352 $7 $238
Extra Help 22 clerk 8 web 30hr $26.88 Total 2792 $95,487 3143 $104,248 Total $7,975 $1,512 $35 $1,190

Notes: TOTAL SALARIES IS 41.8% OF TOTAL BUDGET $104,248
1) Used to Calculate Hourly rate and Overtime. TOTAL BENEFITES IS 3.6% OF TOTAL BUDGET $10,711 $10,711
2) Charlie is on salary at 55 hrs month

Total Operating Budget $226,826 + 25,200 loan, 52,224 reserve
3) Hours and cost per year scheduled are those hours/month 
    times 12 months COST OF LIVING OF 7.5% APPLIED FOR 22-23 PENDING APPROVAL 3/11/23 cost $8,662
4) Hours and cost per year planned are those hours reflected 
    on the budget.  

abor Code Hours Cost Hours Cost Hours Cost Hours Cost Hours Cost
Source of Supply Labor For Operating 511.100 24 $1,355 21 $600 $0 0 $0 45 $1,955
Source of Supply Labor for Maintenance & Repair 512.100 0 $0 22 $628 $0 15 $423 37 $1,052
Water Treatment Labor For Operating 531.100 240 $13,550 346 $9,883 0 $0 108 $3,049 694 $26,482
Water Treatment Labor for Maintenance & Repair 532.100 0 $0 23 $657 $0 15 $423 38 $1,080
Transmission and DistribuLabor For Operating 541.100 156 $8,808 11 $314 $0 40 $1,129 207 $10,251
Transmission and DistribuLabor for Maintenance & Repair 542.100 120 $6,775 112 $3,199 $0 87 $2,456 319 $12,430
Customer Accounts 551.100 $0 356 $9,568 $0 88 $2,129 0 $0 444 $11,696
Labor for Meter Reading 551.200 $0 0 $0 24 $686 381 $9,215 0 $0 405 $9,901
Meter Intallations Labor For Installation 551.310 0 $0 14 $400 0 $0 0 $0 14 $400
Administrative & GeneralSalaries 561.000 67 $3,783 182 $4,891 55 $1,571 481 $12,927 28 $790 813 $23,962

Labor Codes $99,209
       

Labor for AWDF Labor for Easement issues 112.81 $0 $0
$0 $0 $0

Full time equivaltent - FTEtotal hours less vacation  / 2080 0.29 0.26 0.30 0.46 0.14 1.45        FTE
which equals hours for full time

Vacation    1 year - 5days days earned per length of service 565.200 47 $2,636 21 $556 12 $345 $0 23 $636 102 $4,174
                1-5 year - 10 daystimes 8 hours times FTE 104248
              5-10 year - 15 days sick leave 565.200 7 $395 6 $167 7 $207 $0 3 $95 24 $865 -95586
                10+year - 20 daysnew sick leave = 3 days Totals $661 $37,302 $565 $15,182 $648 $18,489 $950 $24,271 $319 $9,003 $0 $0 $3,142 $104,248 cola 8662

Summary Budgeted Labor Hours and Cost
Labor Rates Scheduled(3) Planned (4)

Labor Description

Budgeted Labor Distribution Breakdown
Charlie 1992 vacant 2015 R J Dial 2020 Extra Help TotalPaul 2004

                                                         19



WATER BUDGET FOR IRISH BEACH WATER DISTRICT

2021-2022 2022-2023 Difference Increases
current year Proposed

Income

Water Usage 54,808          17% 58,235     18% 3,427        
Availability 269,670        83% 269,653   82% (17)            
Meter Connections 372               600          228           

Operating Income 324,850$      328,488$ 3,638        
-            

Total 324,850        328,488   3,638        
Expense

Source of Supply 9,120            3% 9,387       3% 267           COLA/Salary 8662
Water Treatment 42,838          13% 45,275     14% 2,437        COLA/Expend 4461
Transmission & Distribtion 36,566          11% 38,694     12% 2,128        Lia. Ins. 7000
Customer Accounts 19,572          6% 22,197     7% 2,625        Software Apps 3000

Reserve 506
Operating Expense 108,096        33% 115,553   35% 7,457        103

23732
Admin & General 114,352        35% 130,627   40% 16,275      

Other Operating vehicle 4,378            1% 4,378       1% -            

Other non-operating Depreciation 35,000          35,000     -            

Total Expense 261,826        81% 285,558   87% 23,732      

3rd year 4th year 5th year/last $7300 (17,900 ops res)

Loan Repayment to Restricted Ops Loans 45,800          14% 25,200     8% (20,600)      Loan installment toward $125,000 total loan

Operations Reserve -                506          506           

< 40 Year Reserve 22-23 108.56
Ops RserveCapital Replacement 17,224          5% 17,224     5% -            21-22 108.56

20-21 $85.50
Total Expense and Increase Reserves 324,850$      328,488$ 3,638$      27% 23.06 per month

Availability Charge/month 108.56$        108.56$   -$          With succesful 218 assessment,

IBWD should be able to restore

Water Charge per 100 gal 0.67$            0.82$       0.15$        availability charge to $85.50 per mo.

by reducing  the cap repl reserve.

                                                         20



 

 

 

    

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

OLD BUSINESS 3 E 

DISCUSSION AND OR ACTION:  ACCEPT AND FILE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL 
AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDING 0/30/2020, 9/30/2021 

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

                                                         21



                                                         22



                                                         23



                                                         24



                                                         25



                                                         26



                                                         27



                                                         28



                                                         29



                                                         30



                                                         31



                                                         32



                                                         33



                                                         34



                                                         35



                                                         36



                                                         37



                                                         38



                                                         39



                                                         40



                                                         41



                                                         42



                                                         43



                                                         44



                                                         45



                                                         46



                                                         47



                                                         48



 

 

 

    

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

NEW BUSINESS 4 A 

DISCUSSION AND OR ACTION: SELECTION OF NEW MEMBERS OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS. 

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

                                                         49



 

 

 

    

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

NEW BUSINESS 4 B 

DISCUSSION AND OR ACTION: CONSIDER RESOLUTION 2023___ IRISH 
BEACH WATER DISTRICT POLICY REGARDING SEPTIC TANK INSPECTIONS 
AND PUMPING . 

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

                                                         50



 

 

 

    

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

NEW BUSINESS 4 C 

DISCUSSION AND OR ACTION: PROPOSED REVISION TO AGENDA FORMAT 
AND ACTION PROCESS FOR EFFICIENCY AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
ROBERT RULES OF ORDER. 

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

                                                         51



 

 

 

    

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

NEW BUSINESS 4 D 

DISCUSSION AND OR ACTION: APPOINT MEMBERS TO BUDGET 
COMMITTEE AND REVIEW PROCEDURES FOR STANDING COMMITTEES. 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

                                                         52



~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 

COMMUNICATIONS AND CORRESPONDENCE 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 
 
 
  

                                                         53



~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 

REPORTS 
 

A. TREASURER 
B. WATER/STORAGE FACILITIES/CONVEYANCE/LOSS 
C. SAFETY COMMITTEE 
D. LEGAL COUNSEL 
E. DIRECTORS 

 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

 
 
  

                                                         54



 

 

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~  

Treasurer’s Reports 

                     ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

 

 

                                                         55



 

March 11, 2023 Board Meeting 3/11/2023 2/1/2023
This period Last Period  

IBWD Cash and Assets: March-2023 February-2023

Checking $6,680 -$2,608
$0 $0
$0 $0
$0 $0

TOTAL CASH ASSETS $6,680.00 -$2,608.00

Accounts Receivable - Grant $98,375.00 $98,375.00
Accounts Receivable - rvs Not Avail not avail
County Tax Rolls $0 $0
Accounts Payable  -$45,840 -$45,840

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS $52,535.00 $52,535.00

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED ASSETS $59,215.00 $49,927.00

Emergency Response Augmentation- $37,037 $37,037
>40 Cash flow loan due to grant cash advances $0 $0
> 40 Year $82,249 $82,235
(5 year loan from restricted funds to operating) $31,710 $31,710

$113,959 $113,945

AWDF/Mallo Pass $431,465 $431,465

TOTAL RESTRICTED  ASSETS -$           $582,461.00 $582,447.00

TOTAL ASSETS $641,676.00 $632,374.00

   

                                                         56



~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING: FEBRUARY 11, 2023 

 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                         57



 
 

IRISH BEACH WATER DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

REX DUNNING FIREHOUSE, 15401 FOREST VIEW ROAD, MANCHESTER, CA 95459 
Saturday, February 11, 2023 at 10:00 A.M. (ZOOM AND IN-PERSON) 

 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: President Terry called the postponed regular meeting of the Irish Beach Water 
District Board Meeting to order at 10:00am.  Roll call of Directors in attendance: Direct Regan and Director Dyson 
attended via Zoom; President Terry, Director Israel, and Director Hackett attended in person.  Staff attending via Zoom: 
District Counsel Emerick and Plant Operator Dial.  General Manager Acker, Accounting Manager Murray, and Staff 
Assistant Forbes attended in person. 
 
PUBLIC INPUT:  A member of the public, Ken Weston, encouraged participants to ask questions and seek clarification 
during the meeting.  A member of the public, Collin Morrow (representing Bill and Tona Moores) noted that the meeting 
packet does not include a copy of the correspondence sent by Gordon Moores regarding plans to install a secondary 
electrical line on the easement along Hillcrest Drive.  President Terry indicated that he was unaware of the 
correspondence, and asked when it was sent.  Mr. Morrow reported that he did not have a copy of the letter but 
understood that it was sent sometime this year. 
 
OLD BUSINESS:  
H. DISCUSSION AND OR ACTION: REPORT FROM THE PROP 218 COMMITTEE - STATUS OF CONTRACT 

FOR SPECIAL BENEFIT ASSESSMENT ENGINEERING STUDY.   
 

Action: The Board accepted the Committee’s report that due diligence was completed in January with positive 
recommendations from the City of Alameda and the Vallejo Flood & Wastewater District, and President Terry 
signed the consulting service agreement on 2/2/23.  The Committee worked with staff to assemble the material 
needed for a kickoff meeting with SCI, which is scheduled for Thursday, 2/16/23. 

 

I. DISCUSSION AND OR ACTION: REPORT FROM THE COMMUNICATIONS AND OUTREACH SUB-
COMMITTEE. 

 

Action: The Board accepted Director Regan’s report that the District’s Facebook page was activated in 
December 2022, and now has 42 followers.  She noted that the Committee is posting to Facebook regularly and 
is removing posts after 30 days to keep the page fresh, as well as issuing information via email and kiosk posts.  
Director Hackett reported that one of the initial volunteers, Jerry Bradbury, withdrew from the Committee for 
personal reasons. 

 

J. DISCUSSION AND OR ACTION:  SMALL COMMUNITY DROUGHT RELIEF GRANT ADMINISTRATION & 
OVERSIGHT. 

 

Action: The Board accepted General Manager Acker’s report that installation of the cover for Tank 2 is in 
progress, with installation of the of the support girders complete, and power-washing in preparation for installation 
of external overhead panels completed yesterday.  He reported that the District has been pumping water from Well 
2 using a generator to prepare for testing; current samples reflect high levels of calcium carbonate, but the levels 
are coming down.  General Manager Acker noted that pending construction actions include installation of electrical 
service to Well 2 and ordering the new Tank 5.  He reported that the District recently submitted a third invoice for 
approximately $87,000 as well as a quarterly status report.  In addition, the board accepted Director Regan’s 
withdrawal from the Grant Committee and determined that Director Hackett will be the sole Board representative 
on the Committee pending selection of a new member of the Board of Directors. 
 
 
 

 

                                                         58



K. DISCUSSION AND OR ACTION:  TECHNOLOGY GRANT IMPLEMENTATION UPDATE.  
 

Action: The Board accepted staff reports indicating that General Manager Acker and Staff Assistant Forbes have 
completed storage of records subject to retention in the District’s DropBox account, while Accounting Manager 
Murray indicated that she needs to verify completion and will provide confirmation at the March meeting.  General 
Manager Acker noted that the District is working with Steve Acker to complete mapping the water system using the 
new ArcGIS service, and Accounting Manager Murray indicated that a prototype of the new website is ready, but 
need’s assistance in determining what information to make available on the website, as well as design.  Staff 
Assistant Forbes volunteered to help with design, and the Board directed the Communications and Outreach Sub-
committee to collaborate with Annette and Khadine to develop the new website. 

 

L. DISCUSSION AND OR ACTION:  REPORT FROM THE BUDGET COMMITTEE – BOARD CONSIDERATION OF 
THE FINAL FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 BUDGET. 

 

Action: After discussion of a proposed COLA for District staff, as well as the need to purchase a truck, Director 
Hackett made a motion to continue the agenda item until the March meeting so that the Finance/Budget Committee 
can complete a thorough analysis as discussed at the November Board meeting before bringing the FY2022 / 2023 
budget to the Board.  Director Israel seconded the motion.  After a roll-call vote, the motion passed unanimously. 

 

M. DISCUSSION AND OR ACTION:  REPORT FROM THE BUDGET COMMITTEE – RECOMMENDATIONS FOR 
BOARD CONSIDERATION OF ASSIGNMENT OF TREASURER FUNCTIONS. 
 

Action: The Board heard the Committee’s recommendation that the role of Treasurer as delineated in IBWD 
Policy 4040.40 be returned to an elected member of the Board of Directors.  After discussing the option of 
contracting out the function, Director Hackett made a motion to move the functions of the Treasurer as delineated 
in IBWD policy 4040.40 back to an elected member of the Board of Directors by the end of calendar year 2023, 
and to authorize contracting for financial consultant services for up to two years of support to the newly elected 
Treasurer.  Director Israel seconded the motion.  After a roll-call vote, the motion passed unanimously.   

 

NEW BUSINESS:  
C. DISCUSSION AND OR ACTION:  2023 ELECTION OF OFFICERS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 

Action: Director Hackett nominated Director Israel as President of the Board; Director Israel nominated Director 
Dyson as Vice-President of the Board; and President Terry nominated Director Hackett as Board Secretary.  All 
Directors accepted the nominations and President Terry made a motion to elect the slate of officers nominated 
effective with the March meeting.  The motion was seconded by Director Hackett.  After a roll-call vote, the motion 
passed unanimously. 

 

D. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION:  NEW BOARD MEMBER RECRUITMENT. 
 

Action: The Board accepted Director Israel’s report on the effort to recruit a new member of the Board to fill the 
vacancy created by President Terry’s resignation.  She reported that notices have been posted to solicit volunteers, 
and reminded the public that letters of interest are due by February 24, 2023. 

 

E. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION:  ADOPT SERIES 1000 GENERAL, POLICY 1035 CODE OF CONDUCT AND 
VALUES. 

 

Action: After a review of the draft policy, Director Hackett made a motion to adopt Policy 1035 Code of Conduct and 
Values.  President Terry seconded the motion.  After a roll-call vote, the motion passed unanimously. 

 

F. DISCUSSION AND OR ACTION: ACCEPT AND FILE DISTRICT FINANCIAL AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEARS 
ENDING 9/30/21; 9/30/20. 

 

Action: Accounting Manager Murray provided an overview of the FY 2020 and FY 2021 audits.  Director Hackett 
asked for clarification regarding the material included in the meeting packet and posted to the IBWD website.  After 
review, the Board concluded that the independent auditor’s report and the management discussion and analysis 
were accidentally omitted, and not available for Board review.  Director Hackett made a motion to continue the 

                                                         59



agenda item until the March meeting so that Accounting Manager Murray can release the full audit report to the 
Board with sufficient time to review the documents.  President Terry seconded the motion.  After a roll-call vote, the 
motion passed unanimously. 

 

G. DISCUSSION AND OR ACTION: REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR AUDIT SERVICES FOR FISCAL YEAR 
ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2022. 
 

Action: After a review of the draft Request for Proposals for Audit Services, President Terry made a motion to 
approve issuance of the RFP on Monday, February 13, 2023.  Director Israel seconded the motion.  After a roll-call 
vote, the motion passed unanimously.  In addition, the Board directed staff to conduct a search for a vendor to 
assist the district in documenting the District’s financial operating procedures and internal controls in a manual (a 
financial bible).  Director Israel agreed to provide Accounting Manager Murray a description of the scope of 
services to be provided for no more than $1,800. 

 

H. DISCUSSION AND OR ACTION: APPROVE RESOLUTION #2 2023 UPDATING SIGNATURES FOR REDWOOD 
CREDIT UNION BANK ACCOUNTS. 

 

Action: The Board discussed the draft resolution and agreed to several amendments: change the resolution number 
from 2023-02 to 2023-01; remove Board Secretary Hackett as a signatory and insert President elect Israel; change 
the resolution date from January 11, 2023 to February 11, 2023.  Director Hackett made a motion to approve 
Resolution 2023-01 as amended.  President Terry seconded the motion.  After a roll-call vote, the motion passed 
unanimously. 

 

I. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION:  PROCLAMATION HONORING DIRECTOR KEN TERRY’S SERVICE TO IRISH 
BEACH WATER DISTRICT.  (ISRAEL) 

 

Action: Director Israel read Resolution 2023-2, honoring President Terry for his service to the Irish Beach 
Community as a member of the Board of Directors of the Irish Beach Water District.  Director Israel made a motion 
to adopt Resolution 2023-2.  Director Dyson seconded the motion.  Roll-call vote: Director Dyson – aye, Director 
Hackett – aye, Director Israel – aye, Director Regan – aye, Director Terry – abstain.  The motion passed with a 
quorum. 

 
COMMUNICATIONS AND CORRESPONDENCE:  None  
 
REPORTS:  
F. TREASURER:  Treasurer’s Report, Checks Issued, FY 2020 & FY 2021 Financial Statement Audits. 
 

Action: Accounting Manager Murray presented the Treasurer’s report and list of checks issued.  After discussing 
several points of clarification, Director Hackett made a motion to approve the list of checks issued and the 
Treasurer’s report.  Director Israel seconded the motion.  After a roll-call vote, the motion passed unanimously.  In 
addition, the Board directed staff to provide the Board with a chart of accounts including all account codes.  Finally, 
staff reported that the action to verify appropriate insurance coverage for Board members (from the December 9, 
2022 special meeting) has not been completed, and the direction to draft an update to Resolution 88-1 (from the 
September 17, 2022 meeting) has not been started.  Director Israel agreed to assume responsibility for drafting a 
replacement for resolution 88-1. 

 

G. WATER STORAGE FACILITIES/CONVEYANCE LOSS 
 

Action: The Board accepted General Manager Acker’s report on submission of the State Water Resources Control 
Board report for Irish Gulch, as well as the use of Well 5 as the source of water supply during the recent storms that 
rendered Irish Gulch water unusable due to turbidity.  Finally, General Manager Acker reported that the North 
Gualala Water Company trucked about 24,000 gallons of water from Irish Beach during the January storms when 
their wells were affected by power outages.  

 

H. SAFETY COMMITTEE:   
 

                                                         60



Action: The Board accepted General Manager Acker’s report that safety meetings had been postponed allowing 
for coordination with Staff Assistant Forbes.  He noted that the March report would include all pending topics. 

 

I. LEGAL COUNSEL:  None 
 

J. DIRECTORS:  None 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: November 12, 2022 Regular Meeting; December 9, 2022 Special Meeting; December 28, 
2022 Special Meeting.  
 

Action: The Board accepted Director Hackett’s recommendation to move to an “Action Minutes” format that 
captures each agenda item, as well as the action taken by the Board in response, with details regarding the 
Board’s discussion captured separately in a document transcribed from the Zoom recording by REV 
transcription automation.  Director Hackett made a motion to authorize the reimbursement of an amount not to 
exceed $399 for the purchase of an annual subscription to REV transcription services to create Word 
document from Zoom recording.  Director Israel seconded the motion.  After a roll-call vote, the motion passed 
unanimously.  Director Dyson made a motion to direct staff to purchase of a refurbished Owl conference 
microphone for an amount not to exceed $599 plus tax and shipping.  Director Hackett seconded the 
motion.After a roll-call vote, the motion passed unanimously.  Director Israel made a motion to approve the 
November 12, 2022, December 9, 2022, and December 29, 2022 meeting minutes.  After a roll-call vote, the 
motion passed unanimously.  The Board accepted President Terry’s recommendation to develop a policy 
delineating post-COVID requirements for meeting attendance.  President-elect Israel agreed to work with 
District Counsel Emerick to develop a policy. 

 

ADJOURNMENT:  Motion was made by Director Hackett with second from President Terry to adjourn the regular 
meeting at 2:11pm.  After a roll-call vote, the motion passed unanimously.  Director Dyson excused himself, and the 
meeting then convened into executive closed session. 
 
EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION. 
A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION: SUBDIVISION (A) OF CALIFORNIA 

GOVERNMENT CODE §54956.9:  WILLIAM H. MOORES ET AL. V. IRISH BEACHWATER DISTRICT, 
MENDOCINO SUPERIOR COURT NO. SC-UK-CV-G-090054665-000; FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL 
NO. A151867. 

 

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED/ POTENTIAL LITIGATION:  SIGNIFICANT 
EXPOSURE TO LITIGATION PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPHS (2) OR (3) OF SUBDIVISION (D) OF SECTION 
54956.9: (1 POTENTIAL CASE). 

 

Action:Closed session was adjourned at 4:16pm with no reportable actions. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted:    Attest as Presented: 
 
 
___________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Susan Israel, President    Heather Hackett, Secretary of the Board 
 
Date: March 11, 2023    Date: March 11, 2023 

 
  

                                                         61



 

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

 

EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSIONS 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION: 
SUBDIVISION (A) OF CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE §54956.9:  
WILLIAM H. MOORES ET AL. V. IRISH BEACH WATER DISTRICT, 
MENDOCINO SUPERIOR COURT NO. SC-UK-CV-G-09-0054665-000;  
FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL NO. A151867. 
 

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED/ POTENTIAL 
LITIGATION:  SIGNIFICANT EXPOSURE TO LITIGATION PURSUANT 
TO PARAGRAPHS (2) OR (3) OF SUBDIVISION (D) OF SECTION 54956.9:               
(1 POTENTIAL CASE). 

 

 

       ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

 

                                                         62



 

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

                                                          ADJOURNMENT 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

 

                                                         63


	Cash Statement thru March 2023 (2).pdf
	ADP1BAB.tmp
	CashMarch23





